

PHONE: 352-360-6727

FAX: 352-360-6652

506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731

Board Members: Others:

Connie Bame, Chairwoman

Colin Crews

Greg Beliveau, LPG

Tracy Kelley, CDD

Daniel Dicus
Philip Purlee
Tom Bradley

Kelly Turner, Administrative Assistant

MINUTES PLANNING & ZONING BOARD SEPTEMBER 20, 2018 6:00PM

- **I.** <u>INVOCATION</u>: Chairwoman Bame called the meeting to order at 6:06P.M. and led the pledge of allegiance. Board member Tom Bradley led the invocation.
- II. ROLL CALL: All Board Members present with exception of Board member Daniel Dicus who previously was excused. Board member Philip Purlee arrived after meeting commenced. Also present LPG Beliveau, CDD Kelley and Administrative Assistant Turner.
- III. MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Approve meeting minutes from June 21, 2018. Motion to approve minutes by Board member Colin Crews. Second by Board member Tom Bradley. Approved 3-0. Board member Philip Purlee not present to vote.
- IV. OLD BUSINESS: None
- V. <u>NEW BUSINESS:</u>

A. Ordinance 2018 – 019 Land Development Code Amendment

a. An Ordinance amending the definition of commercial parking in Chapter 151 of the Land Development Code

LPG Beliveau introduced Ordinance 2018-019 as a clarification to the definition section of the City Land Development Code (LDR). The City has historically interpreted the definition as allowing for commercial vehicles to be parked on-site during business hours and not overnight. The purpose for the amendment clarification is to be sure all city departments, and the public, interpret this definition the same. Chairwoman Bame clarified currently city businesses in the proper zoning are allowed to park their vehicles associated with the on-site business over night; the amendment is for clarification purposes *only*.

LPG Beliveau stated the definition of commercial parking affects all zoning districts where commercial businesses operate. Commercial businesses are however required to have buffers for the purpose of screening.

Chairwoman Bame addressed the public for comment. Attorney Zack McCormick, representing Fruitland Park resident Sharron Pettus, who publicly opposes the amendment approached the Board. Attorney McCormick stated the business located at 206 E Berckman Street which abuts his client's property has chemicals associated

with the on-site business stored on the overnight vehicles and this is a concern for his client. Attorney McCormick requests the Board postpone any recommendations as he believes the Notice of Public Hearing requirements were not met and his client has not had the opportunity to review all documents. Attorney McCormick asked if the recommendation moves forward will an exception be added that prohibits the storage of hazardous materials in any commercial vehicles.

LPG Beliveau confirmed with City Attorney Geraci-Carver, through previous correspondence and who was not present, advertising requirements were met. Mailings were sent in accordance to policy and procedure. Lake County Property Appraiser property records were used (as in all public notices) to notify abutting and surrounding property owners. Fruitland Park resident Sharon Pettus' mailing address, as per public record, is in the state of Maryland. Public notices were sent in a timely manner and appropriately. The City has exceeded State Statutes for notification purposes. Attorney McCormick stated a courtesy notice could have been sent to his client as Sharon Pettus lives in Fruitland Park. LPG Beliveau stated the city followed proper protocol and courtesy notices are not extended to any other Fruitland Park resident. Attorney McCormick is under the impression the agenda item was a last minute change to which LPG Beliveau stated was incorrect. Attorney McCormick inquired why the change was initiated. Chairwoman Bame stated nothing is being changed rather the definition is being clarified. Chairwoman Bame stated the Planning and Zoning Board is a recommendation board only. Board member Crews motioned to accept and refer Ordinance 2018 – 019 Land Development Code Amendment to City Commission. Second by Board member Bradley. Approved 4-0.

B. Village Park Phase II Site Plan (Alt Key 1287863)

a. Major Site Plan Application for Phase Construction of Entrance Road to Village Park Development

LPG Beliveau introduced Village Park Phase II Site Plan to include the entrance road to the new Village Park development. LPG Beliveau stated staff recommends approval. Chairwoman Bame gave opportunity for public comment. Engineer Greg Crawford in attendance on behalf of Westminster Properties and is prepared to answer any questions from the Board. No questions from board members. Chairwoman Bame gave opportunity for public comment to which there were none. Motion to accept Village Park PH II Site Plan as submitted and refer to the City Commission for approval by Board member Crews. Second by Board member Purlee. Approved 4-0.

C. International Carwash Site Plan (Alt Key 1170621)

a. Site Plan Application for a 3,200 square foot car wash facility

LPG Beliveau introduced the proposed car wash facility on US Hwy 441/27. LPG Beliveau stated the application has gone through several reviews and revisions. LPG Beliveau stated the applicant submitted non-residential design standards which meets requirements. LPG Beliveau stated Fire and Emergency services reviewed the site plan application with the variance request to design the one way isle width from 24'

to 14' and meets staff approval. LPG Beliveau introduced Rick Hartenstein, Project Manager, Wick's Engineering Services, Inc., in attendance to answer any questions from the Board. Board member Crews inquired if the site had a water circulation system to reuse water or if wastewater will be dumped into City sewer. Project Manager Hartenstein stated he was not involved with the interior buildout of the building. Chairwoman Bame gave opportunity for questions from the Board or comments from the public to which there were none. Board member Bradley made a motion to recommend approval. Second by Board member Purlee. Approved 4-0.

D. Ordinance 2018 – 021 Rezoning 0.75 ± Acres of Property

a. Rezoning application to rezone approximately $0.75 \pm a$ acres from Residential Professional (RP) to Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) within the city limits of Fruitland Park

LPG Beliveau introduced application and the comments from TRC. City Land Planner and staff recommend approval with conditions noted on site plan such as buffers and parking. LPG Beliveau states the use is compatible with surrounding properties.

Chairwoman Bame gave opportunity for comments from the public as the Board had no questions.

Attorney Zach McCormick introduced himself again as representing Fruitland Park resident Sharron Pettus. Attorney McCormick stated Resident Sharon Pettus opposes the change as she believes it will negatively affect her. Attorney McCormick stated Resident Sharon Pettus believes the property owner stores hazardous chemicals such as chlorine on the property from time to time and Attorney McCormick's client believes this area was never designed for this use. Attorney McCormick stated Resident Sharon Pettus does not object to what Residential Professional Zoning (RP) would normally permit; Attorney McCormick gave example such as administrative functions. Board member Crews inquired which hazardous chemicals are being kept on the property. Attorney McCormick stated Resident Sharon Pettus believes it smells like chlorine but it cannot be determined without a forensic analysis. Attorney McCormick made reference to a myriad of other complaints Resident Sharon Pettus has against the property owner to which Chairwoman Bame inquired if any were illegal. Attorney McCormick advises to direct legality questions to City of Fruitland Park's Attorney. Board member Purlee addressed the claim of hazardous materials and inquired if Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) have been completed determining materials were in violation. Attorney McCormick stated it would need to be investigated. Attorney McCormick brought up Resident Sharron Pettus as a witness who stated chemicals are delivered daily which is where the chemical smell is emanated from. Attorney McCormick stated his request is to postpone any decisions on this issue as it is not a time sensitive matter.

LPG Beliveau stated fifty-four (54) certified notices to surrounding property owners were sent out; three (3) returned undeliverable and one (1) returned unopposed.

Planning & Zoning September 20, 2018 Minutes Continued Page 4 of 4

CDD Kelley stated all notices were sent to the registered property owners' mailing addresses obtained from the Lake County Property Appraiser's website. LPG Beliveau stated public advertisements were completed in a proper manner. CDD Kelley stated the agenda packet was published on the City website in a timely manner also. Board member Crews motioned to recommend approval. Second by Board member Purlee. Approved 3-1. Opposed Bradley.

BOARD MEMBERS' COMMENTS:

Board member Crews addressed Attorney McCormick and stated the Planning & Zoning Board is a recommending board *only* as final determination is made before City Commission.

ADJOURNMENT: Board meeting adjourned at 6:53P.M.